
 

 

TOWN COUNCIL 

 

MEETING 

 

PACKET 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
April 20, 2020 



 
Town Council 

Agenda 
 

Monday, April 20, 2020 
Remote Meeting 

7:00 PM 
 

MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based 
upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of 
life in our community. 

 
Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for 
citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per 
speaker. When several people wish to speak on the same position on a given item, they are requested to select a 
spokesperson to state that position.  
 
1) CALL TO ORDER 

A) Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2) ROLL CALL 
 

3) AGENDA APPROVAL 
 

4) RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 

5)    PUBLIC COMMENT (three-minute limit per speaker) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The “Consent Agenda” is a group of routine matters to be acted on with a single motion and vote.  The Mayor will ask if 
any Council member wishes to have an item discussed or if there is public comment on those ordinances marked with an 
*asterisk.  The Council member may then move to have the subject item removed from the Consent Agenda for 
discussion separately.   
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
6)   CONSENT AGENDA 

A) Town Council Meeting Minutes – April 6, 2020 
B) March Financial Statements 
C) 2nd Reading Ordinance Number 2020-176, an Ordinance Annexing The Ridge at Johnstown Annexation #1 
D) 2nd Reading Ordinance Number 2020-177, an Ordinance Zoning the property known as The Ridge at Johnstown 

              Annexation #1 
E) Resolution 2020-09, a Resolution Affirming April 7, 2020 Regular Municipal Election results approving 

Ballot Question 1B concerning amendments to Section 3.3, 4.2(B) and 4.7(A) of the Johnstown Home Rule 
Charter 

F) Resolution 2020-10, a Resolution Affirming April 7, 2020 Regular Municipal Election results approving Ballot 
Question 1C concerning restoration of the town’s authority to provide advanced services, telecommunication 
services and/or cable television service, either directly or indirectly, with public or private sector partners.               

7)  TOWN MANAGER REPORT 
 
 

8) TOWN ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
9)   OLD BUSINESS 
 A) Highway 60 and I-25 Aesthetic Improvements 
 
10) ADJOURN 
 

11) NEW BUSINESS 
 A)  Administer Oath of Office – Newly Elected Council Members 
 B)  Roll Call 
 C)  Agenda Approval 
 D)  Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 E)  Appointment of Town Attorney 
  

 

 



       F)  Appointment of Municipal Court Judge 
       G)  Public Hearing 1st Reading - Ordinance Number 2020-178, an Ordinance Repealing Article XV of Chapter 17 of  
             the Johnstown Municipal Code concerning Street Maintenance Fees 
       H)  Public Hearing 1st Reading - Ordinance Number 2020-179 an Ordinance Amending Section 4-36, 4-56(7), 4-57(I),  
             and 4-72 of the Johnstown Municipal Code to implement a voter approved Sales and Use Tax increase in the  
             amount of .5% to fund street and sidewalk maintenance and repairs and transportation related projects 
        I)  Award Contract to Connell Resources  – County Road 50 Improvements 

 
 
 

12) COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 

13) MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
 
 
 

14)  ADJOURN 
 

 
 
                                                        



 
 
 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:  April 20, 2020  
 
ITEM NUMBER: 6A-F 
 
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Consent Agenda 
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk, Town Manager 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The following items are included on the Consent Agenda, which may be 
approved by a single motion approving the Consent Agenda: 
 
     A)  Town Council Minutes – April 6, 2020 
     B)   March Financial Statements 
     C)  2nd Reading Ordinance 2020-176, Annexing The Ridge at Johnstown Annexation No. 1  
     D)  2nd Reading Ordinance 2020-177, Approve PUD-MU Zoning for The Ridge at Johnstown Annexation No. 1 
     E) *Resolution 2020-09, Affirming April 7, 2020 Regular Municipal Election Results Approving Ballot Question 
           1B Concerning Amendments to Section 3.3, 4.2(B) and 4.7(A) of the Johnstown Home Rule Charter 
     F) **Resolution 2020-10, Affirming April 7, 2020 Regular Municipal Election Results Approving Ballot  
           Question 1C Concerning Restoration of the Town’s Authority to Provide Advanced Services,  
           Telecommunications Services and/or Indirectly, with Public or Private Sector Partners 
 
*Resolution Number 2020-09 Affirms the April 7, 2020 regular municipal election results with respect to Ballot 
Question 1B. The resolution presented both affirms the election outcome and provides changes proposed to the 
Johnstown Home Rule Charter.  Specifically, Ballot Question 1B asked the voters to make changes to sections 3.3, 
4.2 (b), and 4.7(a) of the Johnstown Municipal Code. The final results of question 1B was an affirmative yes vote by 
a count of - Yay 1861 – No 557. This represented a 77% approval rating for the change. Adoption of the resolution 
would make the changes to these sections as presented. The Town Clerk is required to file the revised Charter with 
the Secretary of State within 20 days of approval. 
 
**Resolution Number 2020-10 Affirms the April 7, 2020 regular municipal election results with respect to Ballot 
Question 1C concerning restoration of the Town’s authority to provide advanced telecommunication and/or cable 
television services either directly or indirectly with public or private sector partners. The final results of question 1C 
was an affirmative yes vote by a count of - Yay 1972 – No 465. This represented an 81% approval rating of this 
measure. As the Town looks forward, and based on the overwhelming support for a more reliable broadband service 
for the community, the Council may want to consider engaging with a firm to evaluate options and opportunities for 
creation of a broadband. This study would also include an investigation on saturation and installation requirements 
and an overall cost benefit. This may be something to considered in FY 2021.  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE: The entire Consent Agenda may be approved by a motion of the Town Council approving the 
Consent Agenda, which automatically approves each and every item listed on the Consent Agenda.  If a Council 
member wishes to have a specific discussion on an individual item included with the Consent Agenda, they may move 
to remove the item from the Consent Agenda for discussion.  
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Agenda 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
For Approval: I move to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
For Denial:  
  
 
 
 
 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   
                                                           

Council Minutes 
 

 
 

  
 
 
       



The Town Council of the Town of Johnstown met on Monday, April 6, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. in a 
virtual meeting for reasons related COVID19.   
 
Mayor Lebsack led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call: 
Those answering present were:   Councilmembers Berg, Lemasters, Mellon, Molinar Jr. Tallent 
and Young  
 
The following staff members were also present in the virtual meeting:  Avi Rocklin, Town 
Attorney, Matt LeCerf, Town Manager, Marco Carani, Public Works Director, Mitzi McCoy, 
Finance Director, Kim Meyer, Planning Director, Jamie Desrosier, Communication Manager and 
Brian Phillips, Police Chief. 
 
Agenda Approval 
 
Councilmember Tallent made a motion seconded by Councilmember Berg to approve the  
Agenda.   Motion carried with a roll call vote.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lemasters to approve the 
Consent Agenda with the following items included:     

• March 16, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes 
• Payment of Bills 
• 2nd Reading Ordinance Number 2020-175 
• Proposal from Tait and Associates, Inc. – Professional Engineering, Survey, and Utility 

Mapping Services for the Town of Johnstown’s Old Town Drainage and Street 
Rehabilitation Improvements 

• Weld County Community Block Grant 
Motion carried with a roll call vote.   
 
New Business 
 
A. Public Hearing –  The Ridge at Johnstown Annexation #1 – This is a request to annex 
approximately 9.606 acres of unincorporated  land in Larimer County.  This property is located 
south of County Road 18 and east of Hwy 402/I-25 interchange.  The adjoining properties to the 
east, west, and south are all located in the town and are held in the same ownership.   
   
Mayor Lebsack opened the public hearing at 7:22 p.m. and heard from staff.  Having no public 
comment closed the hearing at 7:30 p.m.   
 

1.  Councilmember Lemasters made a motion seconded by Councilmember Mellon to 
approve the Annexation Agreement.  Motion carried with a roll call vote.  

 
 



 
Johnstown, Colorado                                          -2-                                April 6, 2020 
 

2. Councilmember Young made a motion seconded by Councilmember Berg to approve 
Resolution 2020-07, Findings of Fact and Conclusions based thereon with respect to The 
Ridge at Johnstown Annexation No. 1.  Motion carried with a roll call vote. 

 
3. First Reading - Ordinance Number 2020-176 – Annexing certain unincorporated lands 

located in the Northwest Quarter of Section 26, Township 5 North, Range 68 West of the 
6th P.M., County of Larimer, State of Colorado known as the Ridge at Johnstown 
Annexation No. 1, and containing approximately 9.606 Acres.  Councilmember Young 
made a motion seconded by Councilmember Tallent to approve Ordinance 2020-176.  
Motion carried with a roll call vote.   

 
B.  Public Hearing – First Reading – Ordinance Number 2020-177, Approval of PUD-MU 
Zoning of the property known as The Ridge at Johnstown Annexation No. 1 located in the 
Northwest Quarter of Section 26, Township 5 North, Range 68 West of the 6th P.M., County of 
Larimer, State of Colorado, and  containing approximately 9.606 Acres.  This is a request to zone 
the property known as The Ridge at Johnstown Annexation No. 1 to PUD-MU (Planned Unit 
Development- Mixed Use) Zoning District.   
 
Mayor Lebsack opened the public hearing at 7:35 p.m. and heard from staff.  Having no public 
comment closed the public hearing at 7:41 p.m.   Councilmember Lemasters made a motion 
seconded by Councilmember Tallent to approve Ordinance Number 2020-177.  Motion carried 
with a roll call vote. 
 
C.  Low Point Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Project Design – The Town issued and 
advertised for a Request for Proposals for design of the Low Point WWTP expansion project.  A 
total of 5 submittals were received, after staff review the firms were narrowed down to 3.  Staff 
interviewed the 3 firms and based upon the review is recommending Aqua Engineering 
Consultants, LLC.  The total contract amount for the services is $577,584 with an additional 
$12,5000 for reimbursable expenses.  Councilmember Berg made a motion seconded by 
Councilmember Molinar Jr. to approve and award the Low Point Wastewater Treatment Plan 
Expansion Design to Aqua Engineering Consultants, LLC in the amount of $590,584 and if 
necessary authorize the Town Manager to approve changes of not more than 6% of the scope of 
work if necessary.  Motion carried with a roll call vote. 
 
D.  Water Transfer Request – This is a request to allow Johnstown Plaza to purchase and transfer 
6 shares of Home Supply Water which are attached to the Ransom Annexation.  Councilmember 
Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lemasters to approve the sale and transfer 
of 6 shares of Home Supply Water from the Ransom Annexation to Johnstown Plaza 
Apartments, LLC for the multi-family development currently under construction in the 
Johnstown Plaza Development.  Accordingly, I direct the Town Manager to provide written 
approval of the sale and transfer of the water appurtenant to the Ransom Annexation to Platte 
Land & Water, LLC pursuant to Paragraph 9 of the Annexation Agreement.  Motion carried with 
a roll call vote. 



Johnstown, Colorado                                  -3-                                             April 6, 2020 
 
E.  Resolution 2020-08, Declaring the Month of April as Essential Workers Month.  
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lemasters to approve 
Resolution 2020-08.  Motion carried with a roll call vote. 
 
Executive Session – Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember 
Tallent to recess into Executive Session for a discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. 
Section 24-6-402(4)(f) to Discuss Town Manager Evaluation.  Motion carried with a roll call 
vote.  Mayor Lebsack reopened the meeting at 9:19 p.m. and stated nothing further was 
discussed. 
 
There being no further business to come before Council the meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 
  
 
 
                                                          Mayor                                                       
 
 
                                                       Town Clerk 
 
 
 
            



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March Financial  
Statements 

 
 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - General Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

General Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 37,228,247      37,228,247      

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 3,030,043        12,631,080      24.0%
Licenses & Permits 945,039           828,200           114.1%
Fines & Forfeitures 37,563             171,000           22.0%
Intergovernmental 60,860             15,000             405.7%
Earnings on Investment 72,098             288,000           25.0%
Miscellaneous Revenue 41,778             216,200           19.3%
Transfers In -                       -                       

Total Operating Revenues 4,187,381        14,149,480      29.6%

Expenditures:
Legislative 74,775             978,200           7.6%
Town Manager 44,012             722,750           6.1%
Town Clerk 67,022             338,850           19.8%
Finance 35,895             230,950           15.5%
Planning 77,031             762,600           10.1%
Building Inspections 39,994             236,200           16.9%
Police 785,128           3,522,080        22.3%
Public Works 24,902             133,650           18.6%
Buildings 58,232             210,200           27.7%
Transfers Out 255,665           14,097,660      1.8%

Total Expenditures 1,462,658        21,233,140      6.9%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 2,724,723        (7,083,660)       

Prior Period Adjustment

Ending Fund Balance* 39,952,970      30,144,587      

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues 
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Conservation Trust Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Conservation Trust Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 0 0

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 19,194             84,800             22.6%
Earnings on Investment -                       100                  0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 19,194             84,900             22.6%

Expenditures:
Operations -                       -                       
Capital Outlay -                       75,000             0.0%

Total Expenditures -                       75,000             0.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 19,194             9,900               

Ending Fund Balance* 19,194 9,900

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Parks and Open Space Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Parks and Open Space Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 5,544,616 5,544,616

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 428,352 359,817 119.0%
Miscellaneous Revenue 7,599 315,700 2.4%
Transfers In 0 220,000 0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 445,732           895,517           49.8%

Expenditures:
Operations 57,770             458,750           12.6%
Capital Outlay 66,252             728,000           9.1%
Transfers Out -                       -                       

Total Expenditures 124,022           1,186,750        10.5%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 321,709           (291,233)          

Ending Fund Balance* 5,866,325        5,253,383        

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

Revenue Budget

2019 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

Expenditures Budget

2019 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Street and Alley Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Street and Alley Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 8,463,136 8,463,136

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 558,252           838,000           66.6%
Intergovernmental -                       1,511,650        0.0%
Charges for Services 269,166           1,024,000        26.3%
Capital Investment Fees 1,195,195        305,000           391.9%
Earnings on Investment 31,553             27,000             116.9%
Tranfers In -                       2,000,000        0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 2,054,165        5,705,650        36.0%

Expenditures:
Operations & Maintenance 360,177           2,284,050        15.8%
Capital 55,172             8,684,500        0.6%

Total Expenditures 415,349           10,968,550      3.8%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 1,638,817        (5,262,900)       

Ending Fund Balance* 10,101,953      3,200,236        

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Capital Projects Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Capital Projects Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 10,994,106 10,994,106

Revenues:
Taxes and Fees 147,497           450,000           32.8%
Miscellaneous Revenue -                       -                       
Interest 42,027             79,000             53.2%
Transfers In -                       (15,000)            

Total Operating Revenues 189,525           514,000           36.9%

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay 1,304               2,479,700        0.0%
Transfers Out -                       -                       0.0%

Total Expenditures 1,304               2,479,700        0.1%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 188,220           (1,965,700)       

Ending Fund Balance* 11,182,326      9,028,406        

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Tax Allocation Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Tax Allocation Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 5,555 5,555

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees -                       490,000           0.0%
Earnings on Investment -                       100                  0.0%

Total Operating Revenues -                       490,100           0.0%

Expenditures:
Miscellaneous -                       490,000           0.0%

Total Expenditures -                       490,000           0.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures -                       100                  

Ending Fund Balance* 5,555               5,655               

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Water Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Water Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance 18,054,317 18,054,317

Revenues:
Charges for Services 409,410           2,518,000        16.3%

Total Operating Revenues 409,410           2,518,000        16.3%

Expenses:
Administration 40,517             522,550           7.8%
Operations 391,236           1,887,920        20.7%
Capital Outlay 141,926           6,853,000        2.1%
Depreciation 56,468             355,000           15.9%
Transfers Out -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenses 630,147           9,618,470        6.6%

Operating Income (Loss) (220,737)          (7,100,470)       

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Tap Fees 360,538           804,625           44.8%
Capital Investment Fees 330,871           100,000           330.9%
Misc. Revenues 115,484           2,144,000        5.4%
Interest Expense 60,213 126,000 47.8%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 867,107           3,174,625        27.3%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses 646,370           (3,925,845)       

Ending Cash Balance* 18,700,687 14,128,472

* - Unaudited

 

25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Sewer Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Sewer Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance 8,393,987 8,393,987

Revenues:
Charges for Services 528,396           1,950,000        27.1%

Total Operating Revenues 528,396           1,950,000        27.1%

Expenses:
Administration 32,124             310,500           10.3%
Operations 209,313           1,895,870        11.0%
Capital Outlay 435,076           10,874,000      4.0%
Depreciation 32,167             205,000           15.7%

Total Operating Expenses 708,681           13,285,370      5.3%

Operating Income (Loss) (180,285)          (11,335,370)     

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Improvement Fees 128,570           660,000           19.5%
Misc. Revenues 2,500               1,001,000        0.2%
Interest Expense 9,127               81,000             11.3%
Transfers -                       10,000,000      0.0%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 140,197           11,742,000      1.2%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses (40,089)            406,630           

Ending Cash Balance* 8,353,898        8,800,617        

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Drainage Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Drainage Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance 3,342,074 3,342,074

Revenues:
Charges for Services 99,619             435,000           22.9%

Total Operating Revenues 99,619             435,000           22.9%

Expenses:
Administration 22,782             143,100           15.9%
Operations 79,655             345,900           23.0%
Capital Improvements 31,586             515,000           6.1%
Transfer Out -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenses 134,023           1,004,000        13.3%

Operating Income (Loss) (34,403)            (569,000)          

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Revenues 113,943           50,000             227.9%
Misc. Revenues -                       -                       
Interest Expense 7,164               25,200             28.4%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 121,107           75,200             161.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses 86,703             (493,800)          

Ending Cash Balance* 3,428,777        2,848,274        

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Cemetery Perpetual Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Cemetery Perpetual Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 125,195 125,195

Revenues:
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,796               903                  198.9%
Earnings on Investment 372                  100                  372.3%

Total Operating Revenues 2,168               1,003               216.2%

Expenditures:
Operations & Maintenance -                       -                       
Capital Outlay -                       -                       
Transfers Out -                       -                       

Total Expenditures -                       -                       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 2,168               1,003               

Ending Fund Balance* 127,363           126,198           

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Library Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Library Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 3,491,367 3,491,367

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                       824,716           0.0%
Miscellaneous Revenue -                       11,000             0.0%
Capital Investment Fees 239,412           20,000             1197.1%
Interest 935                  1,500               62.3%
Transfers In -                       1,022,660        0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 240,347           1,879,876        12.8%

Expenditures:
Operations 72,565             1,589,915        4.6%
Capital Outlay -                       -                       0.0%

Total Expenditures 72,565             1,589,915        4.6%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 167,782           289,961           

Ending Fund Balance* 3,659,149        3,781,328        

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

400,000

800,000

1,200,000

1,600,000

2,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

400,000

800,000

1,200,000

1,600,000

2,000,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Recreation Center Fund
Period Ending March 31, 2020

Unaudited

Recreation Center Fund

 2020
Actuals

Mar 

2020
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance* 12,000,000 12,000,000

Revenues:
Transfers In -                       600,000           0.0%
Earnings on Investment -                       -                       

Total Operating Revenues -                       600,000           0.0%

Expenditures:
Operations & Maintenance -                       500,000           0.0%
Capital Outlay 3,765,726        12,000,000      31.4%

Total Expenditures 3,765,726        12,500,000      30.1%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures (3,765,726)       (11,900,000)     

Ending Fund Balance* 8,234,274        100,000           

* - Unaudited
25% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

Revenue Budget

2020 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2020 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance 2020-176 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance 2020-177 







  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
Resolution 

                          No. 2020-09 
 

  
 
 

  
 
 
       



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-09 

RESOLUTION AFFIRMING APRIL 7, 2020 REGULAR 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION RESULTS APPROVING BALLOT 
QUESTION 1B CONCERNING AMENDMENTS TO SECTIONS 3.3, 
4.2(B) AND 4.7(A) OF THE JOHNSTOWN HOME RULE CHARTER.  

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the 
Town’s Home Rule Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council is vested with the authority to administer the affairs of the 
Town; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council referred Ballot Question 1B to the registered electors of 
the Town at the regular municipal election held on Tuesday, April 7, 2020, which provided as 
follows: 

 
SHALL SECTIONS 3.3, 4.2(B) AND 4.7(A) OF THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 
HOME RULE CHARTER BE AMENDED TO CLARIFY THE STATUS OF THE 
MAYOR AS A MEMBER OF THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CALCULATING QUORUM AND FOR THE PURPOSE OF DETERMINING THE 
MAJORITY VOTING REQUIREMENTS FOR THE ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTIONS, MOTIONS AND EMERGENCY ORDINANCES? 

WHEREAS, the majority of the registered electors in the Town voted in favor of Ballot 
Question 1B; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to affirm the election results and affirm the 

amendments to Sections 3.3, 4.2(B) and 4.7(A) of the Town of Johnstown Home Rule Charter.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 

1. The Town Council hereby affirms the results of the regular municipal election 
held on April 7, 2020, and recognizes that a majority of the registered electors voted in favor of 
Ballot Question 1B. 

2. The Town Council hereby affirms that, based on the results of the election, 
Section 3.3 of the Johnstown Home Rule Charter shall hereinafter read as follows: “A majority 
of the Entire Council holding office at the time shall be a quorum for the transaction of business 
at all Council meetings.” 

3. The Town Council hereby affirms that, based on the results of the election, 
Section 4.2(B) of the Johnstown Home Rule Charter shall hereinafter read as follows: “Except 



where a greater number is required in this Charter, the final adoption of any ordinance shall 
require the affirmative vote of a majority, which is four (4) of the Council, and resolutions and 
motions shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the Entire Council present at the 
meeting adopting such resolutions and motions.” 

4. The Town Council hereby affirms that, based on the results of the election, the 
first sentence of Section 4.7(A) of the Johnstown Home Rule Charter shall hereinafter read as 
follows: “An emergency ordinance necessary for the immediate preservation of public property 
or assets, health, welfare, peace, or safety shall require the affirmative vote of five (5) members 
of the Entire Council.” 

5. Pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-2-208, the Town Clerk is hereby directed to file the 
amended Johnstown Home Rule Charter with the Secretary of State. 

6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and adoption 
 

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ___ day of April, 2020. 

 

ATTEST:     TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

 

By: ___________________________  By: _______________________________ 
   Diana Seele, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
Resolution 

                          No. 2020-10 
 

  
 
 

  
 
 
       



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-10 

RESOLUTION AFFIRMING APRIL 7, 2020 REGULAR MUNICIPAL 
ELECTION RESULTS APPROVING BALLOT QUESTION 1C 
CONCERNING RESTORATION OF THE TOWN’S AUTHORITY TO 
PROVIDE ADVANCED SERVICES, TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
SERVICES AND/OR CABLE TELEVISION SERVICES, EITHER 
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, WITH PUBLIC OR PRIVATE 
SECTOR PARTNERS.  

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the 
Town’s Home Rule Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council is vested with the authority to administer the affairs of the 
Town; and  

WHEREAS, in 2005, the Colorado General Assembly enacted Title 29, Article 27 of the 
Colorado Revised Statutes, commonly known as Senate Bill 152, limiting a local government’s 
authority to provide, or participate in the provision of, advanced services, telecommunication 
services and/or cable television services, as defined therein, either directly or indirectly, with 
public or private sector partners, without first securing voter approval; and  

WHEREAS, because access to high-speed broadband networks and fast, affordable and 
reliable internet services is essential residents and businesses in the Town and because the Town 
may desire to participate in accomplishing those objectives for the benefit of the citizens in the 
future, the Town Council referred Ballot Question 1C to the registered electors of the Town at 
the regular municipal election held on Tuesday, April 7, 2020, which provided as follows: 

WITHOUT INCREASING TAXES, SHALL THE CITIZENS OF THE TOWN OF 
JOHNSTOWN RE-ESTABLISH THE TOWN'S RIGHT TO PROVIDE ALL 
SERVICES RESTRICTED BY TITLE 29, ARTICLE 27 OF THE COLORADO 
REVISED STATUTES, DESCRIBED AS “ADVANCED SERVICES,” 
“TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES” AND “CABLE TELEVISION 
SERVICES,” INCLUDING ANY NEW AND IMPROVED BROADBAND AND 
HIGH-SPEED INTERNET SERVICES AND FACILITIES BASED ON FUTURE 
TECHNOLOGIES, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, WITH PUBLIC 
AND/OR PRIVATE SECTOR PARTNERS, TO RESIDENTS, BUSINESSES, 
SCHOOLS, LIBRARIES, NON-PROFIT ENTITIES AND OTHER USERS OF SUCH 
SERVICES? 
 
WHEREAS, the majority of the registered electors in the Town voted in favor of Ballot 

Question 1C; and  
 



WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to affirm the election results.     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 

1. The Town Council hereby affirms the results of the regular municipal election 
held on April 7, 2020, and recognizes that a majority of the registered electors voted in favor of 
Ballot Question 1C, restoring the Town’s authority to provide advanced services, 
telecommunications services and/or cable television services, either directly or indirectly, with 
public or private sector partners. 

2. The Town Council hereby affirms its desire that the Town have access to high-
speed broadband networks and fast, affordable and reliable internet services and its commitment 
to explore opportunities to enhance such services in the future. 

3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and adoption 
 

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ___ day of April, 2020. 

 

ATTEST:     TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

 

By: ___________________________  By: _______________________________ 
   Diana Seele, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 



 
AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
 
 
 

Town Manager Report 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
 

The Community That Cares 

 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 

 

FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 

 

DATE:  April 20, 2020 

 

CC:   Town Staff 

Local Media 

 

SUBJECT:  Town Manager’s Report 

 

 

Upcoming Town Council Work Sessions – If there are topics that the Council would like staff to 

schedule for discussion, please let me know. The following topics are recommended for Council 

discussion (all meetings will be held in the Town Council Chambers unless otherwise indicated): 

 

• 04/20/2020 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

• 05/04/2020 – Regular Town Council Meeting  

• 05/19/2020 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Administration, Finance, & Planning 

• Water Transfer – The water transfer of 8 CBT units to Little Thompson Water District 

(LTWD) was approved by the Northern Water Board last week. We anticipate the 

transfer of the 2 Home Supply Shares to the Town from LTWD to occur in the near 

future. 

• COVID-19 Impact – Staff has been participating in many calls and video conferencing 

meetings related to the impacts of COVID-19 with the following parties: local 

businesses, County Public Health Officials, Regional Economic Development Partners, 

and State Departments.  

• Caselle Connect – Staff worked with Caselle to launch an online financial dashboard so 

that department heads can more easily access the financial data that they need whether in 

the office or working remotely. 

• Finance Training – Staff is attending Caselle webinar trainings to stay up to date on the 

most recent changes and improvements that have been made to our financial software.  

Staff has also attended FEMA webinars for emergency management tracking for 

emergencies. 

• Liquor Licenses – Lazy Dog Restaurant, Cassidy’s Sports Grill, Loaf N Jug Liquor 

Licenses were renewed. 



 

 

• Communications Tools – The Town has settled on a new website platform and will be 

determining the best solution for setting up mass emailing for Town News and our 

newsletter in an effort to keep residents more informed in a timely way. 

• Central Square Software – Staff continues to meet with the implementation team for the 

new project tracking software. We are approximately 75% complete with configuration 

workbooks for their teams to begin building the software to our specifications.  

• Comprehensive Plan – Logan Simpson and Town Staff have been working to expand 

online engagement opportunities through Facebook, Twitter, and our website to reach our 

citizens where they are – to gain input to help formulate and guide our comprehensive 

planning efforts. As of April 14th, we reached 1500 people, received numerous online 

comments, and have had over 50 people take online quizzes and longer questionnaires.  

• Hwy 402 Access Control Plan and IGA – Town staff has participated with Loveland, 

Larimer County, and CDOT over the past several months in drafting a proposed “ACP” 

for Hwy 402, from I-25 to US 287. The final plan and proposed IGA for plan 

implementation are being completed by CDOT’s consultant this month.  

 

Police Department 

Training: 

• K9 Training and Certification- Officer Kehr successfully completed the 16 week long K9 

certification course with dog Vasco. Vasco is now certified in both narcotics’ detection 

and patrol tracking and apprehension. 

Community Policing, Outreach & Miscellaneous Items: 

• Community Interaction – The police department has participated in four (4) “Birthday 

Parades.”  Our officers are responding to parent’s requests for participation in celebrating 

their children’s birthdays while in quarantine. The PD also participated in a parade with 

the Loveland Fire Department around both hospitals in Loveland to show our support for 

medical personnel.  

• COVID 19 Response – The police department continues to have weekly meetings with 

public health officials from both Larimer and Weld Counties to receive and share the 

latest information on our response to the COVID 19 pandemic. We are still aggressively 

seeking to replenish our PPE supply by reaching out to multiple state and local agencies 

as well as private sector vendors. The police department continues to receive donations of 

hand sanitizer and homemade masks from members of both business and civilian sectors 

of the community. 
 

Public Works Department 

Streets, Stormwater, & Parks 

• Cemetery – Work continues at the Cemetery with the cleanup of flowers and objects. We 

kept things appearing to be of value to be claimed, if necessary. Aerating was also 

completed at Cemetery. An RFP for a Columbarium was sent out and bids set to open in 

May.  

• Street Patching – Crews closed Parish Ave from S.1st north to complete patching as well 

as crack sealing, curb repair and stripping the downtown parking was completed.  

• Street Grading – Due to closure of the frontage road, CR 3 has seen more traffic and has 

been graded three times in the last two weeks. CR 20C, 42, 44, and 46 have also been 

graded for a total of 12 miles.  



 

 

• Fence – Four fence panels were repaired on Rolling Hills Pkwy. that were damaged from 

the last snow storm.  

• Parks – All parks continue to be barricaded and monitored for use. All playground 

equipment was power washed with a hospital grade disinfectant, and will continue on a 

weekly basis until further notice.  

• Fleet – Three police vehicles were recently serviced.   

Water and Sewer 

• Water plant – Media project is underway. The filters are being completed one at a time 

to help keep the plant running and to avoid using emergency water. It takes 

approximately two weeks to complete each filter. This project should be finished in early 

May.  

• Lone tree – The project at the Lone Tree pump station has been moved to the fall due to 

the narrow time frame available and pending increased demand for water. Minimal work 

will continue throughout the summer, with the pumps being replaced in October.  

• Wastewater Plant – The kick-off meeting with Aqua Engineering is scheduled for the 

week of April 20th. This meeting will concentrate on plant assessments and design. The 

Central Wastewater Plant project is almost complete. The Central Plant has been 

experiencing odors in pond #1 so we will be adding H2S to help combat that. Another 

Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) went down at the Central Plant and was ordered.   

• Tanks – A visual inspection of the north tank was completed by ORC Ramey 

Environmental. We hired Liquid Engineering to do a video inspection of all our tanks 

and clean out any sediment inside. Work is scheduled to start in late May.  



 
AGENDA ITEM 9A 
 
 
 
 
                   I-25 and Highway 60 
                   Interchange Concepts 
 
            

 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

AGENDA DATE:  April 16, 2020 
  
ITEM NUMBER:  9A 
 
SUBJECT: I-25 & Highway 60 Interchange Concepts 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Direction on final design rendering 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1. Rendering Options of the Interchange Enhancements 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
The Town has been working with BHA Design to complete the design/aesthetic enhancements of 
the I-25 & Highway 60 Interchange. Initially Council was presented with 3 types of designs by 
BHA. Based on the feedback from Council, BHA has narrowed the design to focus on the brick 
elements from the initial workshop. At this time, they have developed 2 final options for Council 
to consider with the hopes that one of these would be the final determination of the 
improvements subject to any minor changes that the Council would like incorporated. The 2 
designs are included in this item, but we anticipate color renderings to be shown at the meeting 
on Monday. 
 
CDOT is working on structural packages and a portion of this design may be incorporated into 
the CP-3 which is scheduled for bidding from the contractor in mid-May. Based on the final 
design as determined by Council, we would have cost estimates provided to us by CDOT. 
 
It is the request and hope of Staff that Council can made a final design approval this evening 
based on the presented options. 
 
LEGAL ADVICE: 
NA 
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: 
Funds have been budgeted in FY 2020 for this project enhancement. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Identify a final approved design for the enhancements this 
evening. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: No motion, just a consensus of the desired options. 







 
AGENDA ITEM 11A 
 
 
 
 

Administer Oath of Office 
(Newly Elected Council) 

 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: April 20, 2020 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 11A 
 
SUBJECT: Administer Oath of Office – Newly Elected Council Members  
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Administer Oath of Office to Newly Elected Council Members  
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Section 2.4 C., (Term of Office; Time of Taking Office; Oath) of the Town Charter 
provides, in part, for the following: 
 

“Before taking office, the Mayor and each Council member shall take and file with the Town Clerk an oath or 
affirmation to support the United States Constitution, the Colorado Constitution, the Charter, ordinances and 
codes of the Town and to faithfully perform the duties of the office.” 

 
The Town Clerk will be administering the following oath of office to the newly elected council members: 
 
 “I (name of individual), do solemnly swear by the ever living God, that I will support the  

Constitution of the United States of America and of the State of Colorado, the Charter, ordinances and codes of 
the Town of Johnstown, and faithfully perform the duties of the office of  (name of office) upon which I am about 
to enter.” 

 
*Note:   An affirmation is also available, if desired. 
 

LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Administer Oath of Office to Newly Elected Council Members 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  N/A   
  



 
AGENDA ITEM 11D 
 
 
 
 

Appointment of Mayor ProTem 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: April 20, 2020 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 11D 
 
SUBJECT: Appointment of Mayor Pro tem 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Appoint Mayor Pro tem 
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Section 2.2 (Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem) of the Town Charter provides for the 
following:  
 

 “By the affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Council, a Council member shall be appointed as Mayor Pro 
Tem for the term as prescribed by ordinance to perform the responsibilities and duties of the Mayor when the 
Mayor is absent or is otherwise unable to perform the responsibilities and duties of the Mayor.” 

 
    
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint Mayor Pro Tem 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
For Appointment:  I move to appoint (name of Council member) Mayor Pro Tem. 
  



 
AGENDA ITEMS 11E & 11F 
 
 
 
 

• Appointment of Town Attorney 
                                  

• Appointment of Municipal  
             Court Judge 

 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: April 20, 2020 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 11E 
 
SUBJECT: Appointment of Town Attorney 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Reappoint Town Attorney 
 
PRESENTED BY: Mayor 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Article 9 (Town Attorney) of the Town Charter states, in part, the following: 
 
 “The Town Council, by majority of the entire Council, shall appoint a Town Attorney to serve at the pleasure  
 of the Council” 
 
Avi Rocklin was initially appointed Town Attorney on February 3, 2014. 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint Avi Rocklin Town Attorney 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
For Appointment:  I move to appoint Avi Rocklin Johnstown Town Attorney. 
  



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: April 20, 2020 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 11F 
 
SUBJECT: Appointment of Municipal Court Judge 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Reappoint Municipal Court Judge 
 
PRESENTED BY: Mayor and Town Attorney 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Article 10 (Municipal Judge) of the Town Charter states, in part, the following: 
 
“The Town Council shall appoint, by majority vote of the entire Council, a presiding municipal judge and such deputy 
municipal judges as the Council deems necessary.  Each municipal judge shall be appointed for a two (2) year term.”  
 
Mr. Lazar was initially appointed Municipal Judge on May 6, 2002, and previously served as the Town’s substitute 
Municipal Judge. 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint Mr. Mike Lazar Municipal Court Judge 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
For Appointment:  I move to appoint Mr. Mike Lazar Johnstown Municipal Court Judge. 
  



 
AGENDA ITEM 11G 
 
 
 
 

Public Hearing 
(Ordinance 2020-178) 

Removal of Street Maintenance Fees 
 



 

PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE – Ordinance No. 2020-178, an Ordinance Repealing Article 
XV of Chapter 17 of the Johnstown Municipal Code Concerning Street Maintenance Fees; and 
Declaring an Emergency.   

1.  Open public hearing 

2.  Receive information from staff 

3.  Ask to hear from anyone who supports the ordinance 

4.  Ask to hear from anyone who opposes the ordinance 

5.  Close the public hearing 

6.  Ask for discussion 

7.  Make decision and/or motion from Council 

       a.  Need motion to approve or deny the ordinance. 

 

     (SUGGESTED MOTIONS): 

 

For Approval: 
I move to approve Ordinance Number 2020-178, an Ordinance Repealing Article XV of Chapter 
17 of the Johnstown Municipal Code Concerning Street Maintenance Fees; and Declaring an 
Emergency.   

For Denial: 

I move to deny Ordinance 2020-178. 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

AGENDA DATE:  April 20, 2020 
  
ITEM NUMBER:  11G 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Consider Ordinance No 2020-178 Repealing Article 

XV of Chapter 17 of the Johnstown Municipal Code concerning Street 
Maintenance Fees; and Declaring an Emergency 

 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Ordinance 2020-178 Repealing the Street Maintenance Fee as 

Presented  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1. Ordinance 2020-178 
      
PRESENTED BY:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
Consistent with the April 7, 2020 election, Ballot Issue 1A was presented to the registered voters of the 
Town of Johnstown to increase the sales and use tax by 0.5% to fund street and sidewalk maintenance and 
repairs and transportation related projects. The Issue also called for the repeal of the Street Maintenance 
Fee imposed by Article XV of Chapter 17. The voters overwhelmingly supported this initiative by a vote 
of 1568 – 843. This represents a 65% approval of Ballot Issue 1A. Based on the approval, Ordinance 
2020-178 will repeal the Street Maintenance Fee as promised to the voters. This is being presented to the 
Council as an Emergency Ordinance which will make the repeal immediate and the fee would not be 
included in the next utility billing cycle which is set to be issued on or about April 25, 2020.  
 
LEGAL ADVICE:  
The ordinance was drafted by the Town Attorney.  
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: 
While repeal of the street maintenance fee will have a financial impact in the short term, the 
implementation of a 0.5% increase on sales and use tax for transportation purposes will counter balance 
and exceed the long-term revenues compared to the street maintenance fee currently in place.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Ordinance 2020-178 as presented. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
For Approval:  
I move to approve Ordinance 2020-178 as presented to repeal the street maintenance fee specifically 
article XV of Chapter 17 of the Johnstown Municipal Code and declaring an emergency. 
 
For Denial:  
I move to deny ordinance 2020-178 as presented to repeal the street maintenance fee specifically Article 
XV of Chapter 17 of the Johnstown Municipal Code. 
 
 
Reviewed and Approved for Presentation: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Town Manager 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-178__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ARTICLE XV OF 
CHAPTER 17 OF THE JOHNSTOWN MUNICIPAL 
CODE CONCERNING STREET MAINTENANCE FEES; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the 
Town’s Home Rule Charter; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council is vested with the authority to administer the affairs of the 
Town; and  

WHEREAS, by Ordinance 2016-142, adopted on or about August 1, 2016, the Town 
Council approved a street maintenance fee to fund ongoing maintenance of the Town’s streets; 
and  

WHEREAS, by Resolution 2020-04, the Town Council referred Ballot Issue 1A to the 
registered electors of the Town at the regular municipal election held on Tuesday, April 7, 2020, 
concerning a proposed increase in the sales and use tax by 0.5% to fund street and sidewalk 
maintenance and repairs and transportation related projects, and therein committed to repeal the 
street maintenance fee imposed in Article XV of Chapter 17 of the Johnstown Municipal Code if 
a majority of the registered electors of the Town voted in favor of the ballot issue; and  
 

WHEREAS, at the regular municipal election held on April 7, 2020, the majority of the 
registered electors of the Town voted in favor of Ballot Issue 1A, approving the sales and use tax 
increase effective on July 1, 2020; and 

 
 WHEREAS, based on the election results, the Town Council desires to repeal Article 
XV of Chapter 17 of the Johnstown Municipal Code concerning street maintenance fees; and  
 
 WHEREAS, because of the COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting financial impact of 
the pandemic to the residents of the Town, the Town Council desires to repeal the street 
maintenance fee effective immediately and forego the imposition of the street maintenance fee 
during the months of May and June, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that this Ordinance is 
promulgated under the general police power of the Town, that it is promulgated for the 
preservation of the public health, welfare, peace, safety and property and that this Ordinance is in 
the best interests of the citizens of the Town. 

 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  Street Maintenance Fee Repeal.  Article XV of Chapter 17 of the Johnstown 
Municipal Code is hereby repealed.  
 

Section 2.  Repeal. Existing or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as 
embraced in this Ordinance are hereby repealed and all ordinances or parts of ordinances 
inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, except that this repeal 
shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or 
committed in violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this 
Ordinance. 

 
Section 3. Emergency Declaration.  The Town Council finds and declares that an 

emergency exists based on the facts contained in the recitals set forth above and that this 
Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the health, welfare, peace and safety of 
the public and the citizens of the Town.   

 
Section 4.   Effective Date and Publication.   The procedures set forth in Section 

4.6(A) of the Town Charter and corresponding provisions of the Johnstown Municipal Code 
requiring a second reading of an ordinance prior to final adoption are hereby suspended.  
Pursuant to Section 4.7 of the Town’s Home Rule Charter, this Ordinance shall take effect 
immediately upon the affirmative vote of five (5) Councilmembers.  This Ordinance, as adopted 
by the Town Council, shall be published and shall be numbered and recorded by the Town Clerk 
in the official records of the Town.  The adoption and publication shall be authenticated by the 
signatures of the Mayor, or Mayor Pro Tem, and the Town Clerk. 
  

INTRODUCED, PASSED AND ADOPTED AS AN EMERGENCY MEASURE on 
first reading by the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown, Colorado, this ____ day of 
__________________, 2020, by a vote of five (5) Councilmembers of the Town Council of the 
Town of Johnstown. 
 
       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
ATTEST: 
 
By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
     Diana Seele, Town Clerk                           Gary Lebsack, Mayor 



 
AGENDA ITEM 11H 
 
 
 
 

Public Hearing 1st Reading 
(Ordinance Number 2020-179) 

        Implement .5% Sales and Use Tax Increase 
 
 
 
 



 

PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE – Ordinance No. 2020-179, an Amending Section 4-36, 4-
56(7), 4-57(I), and 4-72 of the Johnstown Municipal Code Implementing a Voter Approved 
Sales and Use Tax Increase of 0.5% for Transportation Purposes.   

1.  Open public hearing 

2.  Receive information from staff 

3.  Ask to hear from anyone who supports the ordinance 

4.  Ask to hear from anyone who opposes the ordinance 

5.  Close the public hearing 

6.  Ask for discussion 

7.  Make decision and/or motion from Council 

       a.  Need motion to approve or deny the ordinance. 

 

     (SUGGESTED MOTIONS): 

 

For Approval: 
I move to approve Ordinance Number 2020-179, an Ordinance Amending Section 4-36, 4-56(7), 
4-57(I), and 4-72 of the Johnstown Municipal Code Implementing a Voter Approved Sales and 
Use Tax Increase of 0.5% for Transportation Purposes.     

For Denial: 

I move to deny Ordinance 2020-179. 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

AGENDA DATE:  April 20, 2020 
  
ITEM NUMBER:  11H 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing 1st Reading – Ordinance 2020-179 an Ordinance 

Amending Sections 4-36, 4-56(7), 4-57(I), and 4-72 of the 
Johnstown Municipal Code Implementing a Voter Approved Sales 
and Use Tax Increase of 0.5%for Transportation Purposes.   

 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Ordinance 2020-179 As Presented  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1. Ordinance 2020-179 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
Consistent with the April 7, 2020 election, Ballot Issue 1A was presented to the registered voters 
of Town of Johnstown to increase the sales and use tax by 0.5% to fund street and sidewalk 
maintenance and repairs and transportation related projects and therein committed to repeal the 
Street Maintenance Fee imposed by Article XV of Chapter 17. The voters overwhelmingly 
supported this initiative by a vote of 1568 – 843. This represents a 65% approval of Ballot Issue 
1A.  
 
The establishment of the 0.5% sales and use tax requires an amendment to sections 4-36, 4-
56(7), 4-57(I), and 4-72 of the Johnstown Municipal Code. Modifications have been made to 
these sections to reflect aggregate sales and use tax levels in the Revenue and Finances Chapter 
of the Johnstown Municipal Code. The effectiveness of this ordinance is scheduled to be July 1, 
2020 as proposed in the ballot issue language presented and approved by the voters. Town Staff 
is working with the Department of Revenue and local businesses to begin education and 
awareness of the new sales tax effective on July 1, 2020.  
 
LEGAL ADVICE:  
The ordinance was drafted by the Town Attorney.  
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: 
While repeal of the street maintenance fee will have a financial impact in the short term, the 
implementation of a 0.5% increase on sales and use tax for transportation purposes will counter 
balance and exceed the long-term revenues compared to the street maintenance fee currently in 
place.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Ordinance 2020-179 as presented. 
 
 
 



SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
For Approval:  
I move to approve ordinance 2020-179 amending sections 4-36, 4-56(7), 4-57(I), and 4-72 of the 
Johnstown Municipal Code to be effective July 1, 2020. 
 
For Denial:  
I move to deny ordinance 2020-179 amending sections 4-36, 4-56(7), 4-57(I), and 4-72 of the 
Johnstown Municipal Code to be effective July 1, 2020. 
 
Reviewed and Approved for Presentation: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Town Manager 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-179 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 4-36, 4-56(7), 4-57(1) AND 4-
72 OF THE JOHNSTOWN MUNICIPAL TO IMPLEMENT A VOTER 
APPROVED SALES AND USE TAX INCREASE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
.5% TO FUND STREET AND SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE AND 
REPAIRS AND TRANSPORTATION RELATED PROJECTS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the 
Town’s Home Rule Charter; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council is vested with the authority to administer the affairs of the 
Town; and  

WHEREAS, by Resolution 2020-04, the Town Council referred Ballot Issue 1A to the 
registered electors of the Town at the regular municipal election held on Tuesday, April 7, 2020, 
concerning a proposed increase in the sales and use tax by 0.5% to fund street and sidewalk 
maintenance and repairs and transportation related projects; and  
 

WHEREAS, at the regular municipal election held on April 7, 2020, the majority of the 
registered electors of the Town voted in favor of Ballot Issue 1A; and 

 
 WHEREAS, based on the election results, the Town Council desires to amend 
Sections 4-36, 4-56(7), 4-57(1) and 4-72 of the Johnstown Municipal Code to implement the 
voter approved ballot issue; and  
 

WHEREAS, Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that this Ordinance is 
promulgated under the general police power of the Town, that it is promulgated for the 
preservation of the public health, welfare, peace, safety and property and that this Ordinance is in 
the best interests of the citizens of the Town. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  Section 4-36 of the Johnstown Municipal Code shall be amended to read in 
full as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

Sec. 4-36.  Street and Alley Fund. 
(1) There is hereby created a special fund, to be known at the Street and Alley Fund. 
(2) Revenue shall be provided to the Street and Alley Fund from: 

(a) Fees, vehicle taxes, motor and other vehicle use taxes, transportation 
associated grants; 

(b) One half percent (0.5%) of the sales and use taxes collected in the Town; 
and 

(c) All other revenues associated with transportation. 
(3) Except as otherwise restricted, such funds shall be expended for the payment of 

expenditures associated with construction, maintenance and capital 
improvements of streets, alleys, bridges, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, street 
signs, street striping, street cleaning, snow removal, acquisition of property and 
equipment, and other activities involving transportation and related infrastructure 
as deemed appropriate by the Town. 

 
Section 2.  Subsection (7) of Section 4-56 of the Johnstown Municipal Code shall be 

amended to read as follows: 
 

Sec. 4-56.   General application of tax and exemptions.  
(7) The tax imposed by this Article shall not apply to the sale of tangible personal property at 

retail or the furnishing of services if the transaction was previously subjected to a sales or 
use tax lawfully imposed upon the purchaser or user by another statutory or home rule 
municipality equal to or in excess of three and one half percent (3.5%). A credit shall be 
granted against the tax imposed by this Article with respect to such transaction equal in 
amount to the lawfully imposed local sales or use tax previously paid by the purchaser or 
user to the previous statutory or home rule municipality. The amount of the credit shall 
not exceed three percent and one half (3.5%).  
 
Section 3.  Subsection (1) of Section 4-57 of the Johnstown Municipal Code shall be 

amended to read as follows: 
 

Sec. 4-57.   Schedule of sales tax.  
(1) There is hereby imposed on the sale of tangible personal property at retail or the 

furnishing of   services where such personal property and services are taxable pursuant to 
Section 39-26-104, C.R.S., as amended, a tax equal to three and one half percent (3.5%) 
of the gross receipts. 

 
Section 4.  Section 4-72 of the Johnstown Municipal Code shall be amended to read in full as 

follows: 



 3 

 
Sec. 4-72.   Imposed.  

There is imposed, and there shall be paid and collected, a use tax upon the privilege of using 
or consuming within the Town any construction and building materials, and motor and other 
vehicles on which registration is required, purchased at retail, or both, such use tax to be in 
the amount of three and one half percent (3.5%) of the retail cost thereof. 

 
Section 5.  Repeal. Existing or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in 

this Ordinance are hereby repealed and all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, except that this repeal shall not affect or 
prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation 
of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 6.  Publication; Recording.  This Ordinance, after its passage on final reading, shall 

be numbered, recorded, published and posted as required by the Town’s Home Rule Charter and 
the adoption, posting and publication shall be authenticated by the signature of the Mayor and 
the Town Clerk and by the Certificate of Publication.   

 
Section 7.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective on July 1, 2020.   

 
INTRODUCED, AND APPROVED on first reading by the Town Council of the Town 

of Johnstown, Colorado, this _____ day of __________________, 2020. 
 

       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
ATTEST: 
 
By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
      Diana Seele, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 
 
  

PASSED UPON FINAL APPROVAL AND ADOPTED on second reading by the 
Town Council of the Town of Johnstown, Colorado, this _____ day of __________________, 
2020. 
       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
ATTEST: 
 
By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
     Diana Seele, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 11 I 
 
 
 
 

Award Contract 
Connell Resources 

 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

AGENDA DATE:  April 20, 2020 
  
ITEM NUMBER:  11 I 
 
SUBJECT: CR 50 Road Project 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Contractor Selection 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1. Proposal Comparisons 
    2. Connell Resources Bid 
    3. Asphalt Specialties Bid 
    4. Coulson Excavating Bid 
    5. Mountain Constructors Bid 
    6. Lateral Crossing Little Thompson Cost 
      
PRESENTED BY:  Marco Carani, Director of Public Works 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
Enclosed for your review and consideration is a request to approve the selection of Connell Resources, 
Inc. as the Contractor to construct the CR 50 Road Project for the Town of Johnstown.  
 
As you may recall, Staff applied and was awarded an Energy & Mineral Impact Grant in 2019 from 
Department of Local Affairs (DOLA). The Project consists of the reconstruction of the roadway known as 
Weld County Road 50 and Larimer County Road 14 from The East I-25 Frontage Road east 
approximately 9,700 linear ft. east to Colorado Blvd. The amount budgeted for this project in the FY 
2020 budget is $2,050,000. To complete the roadway design, the Town also had to hire a geotechnical 
firm to evaluate the existing surface. This was an additional and unanticipated cost of $16,000. 
 
Formal advertised bids were published on Rocky Mountain bid site and on the Town’s website on March 
4th. A pre-bid meeting was held on March 13, 2020. Seven (7) contractors attended this meeting for a 
brief overview of the project, to ask questions related to the project, and a site visit. Bids were to be 
opened in a formal setting on April 3, 2020 at 1:00 p.m. Due to social distancing, bid were opened 
privately. In attendance were the Town’s Public Works Director and Town Manager.  
 
Bids had two (2) options for bidding. 

1. Full subgrade preparation which entailed removal of existing gravel surface and building up 
roadway with 10.5 inches of subgrade to 5.5 inches of Asphalt.  

2. Full Depth Reclamation which entailed using a milling machine to mix the existing material 
together to create a base material and place asphalt on top.  

 
Staff has chosen to move forward with the full subgrade preparation. After reviewing the geotechnical 
report. Staff feels this will create a better product and add a longer road life.  
 
Bids based on the are as follows: 

1. Connell Resources.   $2,065,696.00 
2. Asphalt Specialties.   $2,086,381.05 
3. Coulson Excavating.   $2,149,804.00 
4. Mountain Constructor’s   $2,595,270.50. 

 



Based on the bids, the Project came in $15,696 over what was budgeted in FY 2020. Town Staff met with 
CDOT shortly after bids were sent out and we were informed that part of CDOT’s segment 6 
improvements includes lowering of the underpass under I-25 at WCR 50, LCR 14. This lowering causes 
an area of disturbance that CDOT will be impacting within our project area. The area is approximately 
308 ft from the East Frontage Road. After discussion with DOLA whether to fully construct the last 308 ft 
and have CDOT remove the improvements and spend money foolishly, it was decided we could build a 
temporary roadway for the last 308 ft. Instead of constructing a 5.5-inch thick asphalt road, a 2.5-inch 
thick section will be built. Making this change saved $22,947.25 and brings the new number to build this 
roadway to $2,042,748.75. CDOT believes their project will take place 8 – 18 months down the road.  
 
Adding to the project complexity, Little Thompson Water District has an old water line on CR 50 that 
came in conflict with this project. They were required to lower their line and decided to replace it while 
they had the opportunity. For this lowering there were two Home Supply Ditch crossing that they needed 
to go under.  The Ditch Company advised them that they would need to bore their new line under these 
two crossing. Our plans and part of the design included the replacement of these two crossing with RCP 
(Reinforced Concrete Pipe). While working with the water district they had asked, to stay ahead of 
schedule if could they replace the crossings when installing the new water line. This cost which would 
have been in the original bid, was an additional $52,892. The Town will be reimbursing the water district 
for the installation of the two crossing as well as the headwalls for this project.  
 
As a result of the deductions and additional costs described up above in this project, the final estimated 
project cost at this time notwithstanding any change orders is as detailed below: 
 
Original Estimated Cost: $2,050,000 
 
Project Bid Cost:  $2,065,696 
Geotechnical Report:  $     16,000 
Home Supply Crossing (RCP): $     52,892 
Deduction for CDOT Area: $    22,947.25 
Material Testing:  $       8,000 
TOTAL:   $2,119,640.75 
 
Contingency Requested:  $    75,000  
TOTAL WITH CONT.  $2,194,640.75 
 
Difference from Original: $  144,640.75 
 
Estimated Cost Sharing Based on Budget:   
DOLA:    $1,000,000 
Weld County:   $   360,000 
Larimer County:  $     66,666     ($200K total Paid out over 3 years) 
Town of Johnstown:  $   767,974.75  (Includes Contingency) 
 
LEGAL ADVICE: 
N/A 
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: 
$2,050,000 was budgeted for this fiscal year for the WCR 50, LCR 14 Roadway Project. A budget 
amendment is will need to be requested for $144,640.75. We would recommend this be completed after 
the projects completion with the hope that we will have some realized cost savings on the project as it 
proceeds. 



 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Selection of Connell Resources, as the Town’s Contractor and 
authorize the Town Manager to approve any changes above the contract price in the amount not to exceed 
$2,194,640.75. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
For Approval: 
I move to award Connell Resources, as the Contractor for the Weld County Road 50, Larimer County 
Road 14 Roadway Project. Authorize the Town Manager to sign the contracts and to approve any changes 
above the contract price in the amount not to exceed $2,194,640.75. 
 
For Denial: 
I move that we deny selection of Connell Resources, as the Contractor for the Weld County Road 50, 
Larimer County Road 14 Project and consider bidding the project again.  
 
 
Reviewed and Approved for Presentation: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Town Manager 



BIDDER BASE BID CHANGE IN BID CAUSE OF CHANGE IN BID FINAL BID
CONNELL RESOURCES $2,122,696.00  LESS $57,000.00 Bid sub-grade prep and option for total of $114,000  $57,000 each $2,065,696.00
COULSON EXC $2,149,804.00 ADD $82,400.00 Bid on option only. Addition of $82,400 for sub-grade prep $2,149,804.00
ASPHALT SPECIALTIES $2,086,381.05 $120.00 CY Bid as stated on bid doc. Additional $120.00 per cy for option. $2,086,381.05
MOUNTAIN CONSTR $2,255,270.50 $340,000 Error in bid document. Contractor called to change. $2,595,270.50

COUNTY ROAD 50 FINAL BIDS

Town will be moving forward with sub-grade prep and not the FDR option. After review bids are as follows. If any one feels their may 
be an error in these numbers as presented. Please contact Marco Carani, Director of Public Works no later than end of business day, 
April 9, 2020 to discuss. Chosen Contractor will be notified on Friday, April 10, 2020. Award request will be taken to Town Council on 
April 20, 2020. A notice to proceed will folllow after award has been made by Town Council. 











Connell Resources, Inc.
7785 Highland Meadows Pkwy, #100
Fort Collins, CO  80528

Phone: (970) 223-3151
Fax: (970) 223-3191

4/13/2020Date:CHANGE ORDER
QUOTATION

Estimator: Mark Van Ronk

Submitted To: Town Of Johnstown WCR 50 - West End Temporary Asphalt  

Section

Bid Title

Address: 450 S Parish Ave Bid Number:

Johnstown, CO  80534 WCR 50 And I -25 Frontage Rd.Project Location:

Contact: Marco Carani Project City, State: Johnstown, CO

Engineer/Architect: Galloway Planning Architecture, EngineeringPhone: 970-587-4664 970-587-0141Fax:

We offer for your consideration the following Change Order Quotation which, if accepted, shall constitute a modification to the contract between us.

Total PriceUnit PriceUnitItem DescriptionItem # Estimated Quantity

($3,134.90)$6.67-470.00CREDIT Grading Onsite Excavation2 CY

$2,438.80$8.71280.00ADD Grading - Strip To Stockpile And Reuse Existing  
Base ASSUME 8" Thick

2 CY

($9,876.85)($7.87)1,255.00CREDIT 3" MATERIAL ONLY Asphalt Paving  (Pave 2.5" 

Grading SX)

18 SY

($12,374.30)$9.86-1,255.00CREDIT MATERIAL ONLY - ABC - 10.5" Class 619 SY

($22,947.25)Total Price for above Items:

($22,947.25)Total Bid Price:

Notes: • Change Order Pricing is based upon Town of Johnstwon direction to reduce the west 310 LF of roadway to a temporary 2.5" asphalt

pavement section on existing gravel base.

ACCEPTED:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory  
and hereby accepted.

Sponsor:

Signature:

Date of Acceptance:

CONFIRMED:

Connell Resources, Inc.

Authorized Signature:

Estimator: Mark Van Ronk

970-231-3151     mvanronk@connellresources.com

WCR 50 - West End Temporary Asphalt Section  Page 1 of 1











































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Quote to replace Little Thompson 
           Water District water line  

 





 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATIONAL 



 Recycling these materials will save the following resources:

Enough power to fulfill the annual 
electricity needs of 5 homes!

March 2020 Recycling Benefits for 

95,367 Gallons of Water
Represents enough fresh water to meet the daily needs of 

1,271 people!

Avoided 56 Metric Tons of 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Recycling these materials helps create 
cleaner air!

87 Cubic Yards of Landfill Airspace
Enough airspace to fulfill the annual municipal waste 

disposal needs for 112 people!

59,264 kWh of Electricity

163 Mature Trees
Represents enough saved timber resources to produce 

2,025,500 sheets of printing and copy paper!

In March 2020, we recycled 24 tons of cans, bottles, paper, and cardboard.
the Town of Johnstown

Sources: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, International Aluminum Institute, National Association for PET Container Resources, 
Institute of Scrap Recycling Industries, Earth Works Group Recycler’s Handbook, One Earth Recycle, Bring Recycling.org, National
Recycling Coalition, US Forest Products Laboratory, and Waste Management. © Waste Management 2016

Prepared by Waste Management



Waste Management of Colorado
Monthly Diversion Report
Town of Johnstown, CO

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
MSW 440.8 365.6 560.2 1366.6

Recycle 38.1 15.8 24.4 78.2

Recycling Goal 23.9 19.1 29.2 72.2

Total Combined (MSW & RCY) 478.9 381.4 584.5 1444.8

Diversion (Recycling)  % 7.96% 4.13% 4.17% 5.41%
 

YEAR TO DATE DIVERSION REPORT - 2020

Diversion Tons

440.8
365.6

560.2

38.1

15.8

24.4

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

To
ns

 C
ol

le
ct

ed

Monthly Tonnage Summary 2020

Recycle

MSW

38.1

15.8

24.423.9

19.1

29.2

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

To
ns

 C
ol

le
ct

ed

Recycling Actual Compared to Recycling Goal (5%)

Recycle

Recycling Goal


	03.2020 Johnstown Green Facts.pdf
	Exhibit Print Version 1

	ADP3DDF.tmp
	Diversion

	ADP3AF9.tmp
	Diversion

	ADP61D.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 7

	ADP201F.tmp
	____________________________
	Town Manager


	ADP7EE6.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11A

	ADP5802.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11B

	ADPB77A.tmp
	____________________________

	ADPA755.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11D

	ADPA814.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11E

	ADP1670.tmp
	Town Manager ____________________________

	ADP3A25.tmp
	Town Manager ____________________________

	ADP6535.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11F

	ADPC0A9.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11G

	ADP4E3B.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11H

	ADP60CD.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11 I

	ADP2B12.tmp
	AGENDA ITEMS 11E & 11F

	ADP8A5E.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPB063.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 9A

	ADP9F65.tmp
	Town Council
	Monday, April 20, 2020
	Remote Meeting
	7:00 PM
	MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community.
	Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When sever...


